
 

 
 
Special Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
Date Monday 13 December 2021 

Time 9.30 am 

Venue Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 
 

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. 
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's 

agreement. 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Substitute Members   

3. Declarations of Interest, if any   

4. Any Items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties   

5. Question to Council on 22 September 2021 - Ecological 
Emergency - Report of Corporate Director of Resources  (Pages 
3 - 8) 

6. Consideration of an Ecological Emergency  (Pages 9 - 44) 

 (a) Report of the Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods and Climate 
Change 

(b) Presentation by the Head of Environment Services and the 
Principal Ecologist, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

 

7. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
 
 

Helen Lynch 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 



County Hall 
Durham 
3 December 2021 
 
 
To: The Members of the Environment and Sustainable 

Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

 Councillor B Coult (Chair) 
Councillor J Elmer (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors E Adam, P Atkinson, L Brown, J Charlton, 
L Fenwick, G Hutchinson, C Kay, C Lines, R Manchester, 
C Martin, B McAloon, I McLean, D Nicholls, R Potts, J Purvis, 
J Quinn, T Stubbs and S Townsend 

 
Co-opted Members: 
Mr T  Bolton and Mrs P Holding 

 
 

Contact: Ian Croft  Tel: 03000 269702 

 



Environment and 

Sustainable Communities 

Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 

13 December 2021 

Question relating to 

consideration of Ecological 

Emergency 

 

Report of Paul Darby, Corporate Director of Resources 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Countywide 

Purpose of the Report 

1 The purpose of the report is to provide members of the committee with 
background information to why the Environment and Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee (ESC OSC) is 
undertaking a focused piece of work to consider as to whether Cabinet 
should declare an ecological emergency. 
 

Executive summary 

2 At County Council on 22 September 2021, the Vice Chair of ESC OSC 
asked a question in relation to Durham County Council declaring an 
economic emergency. 
 

3 At Cabinet on 13 October 2021, the Portfolio Holder Neighbourhoods 
and Climate Change took a report that recommended that scrutiny 
include in its work programme activity to consider whether Durham 
County Council should declare an ecological emergency. 
 

4 ESC OSC at its meeting on 24 November 2021 agreed to include in its 
2021/22 work programme a focused piece of work to consider as to 
whether DCC needs to declare an ecological emergency and make 
recommendations to Cabinet accordingly. 
 

5 It was also agreed by the committee that this focused piece of work 
would initially be undertaken via two special meetings of the committee 
with flexibility in relation to the number of meetings and the timescale to 
complete this piece of work. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Recommendation 

6 That the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee are requested to: 

a)  note the content of the report and comment accordingly 

Background 

7 At ESC OSC meeting on 16 July members considered a report and 
presentation on the priorities of the County Durham Climate Change 
Partnership and it was suggested by members the Durham County 
Council should consider the prospect of an Ecological Emergency. 
 

8 At County Council on 22 September 2021, Councillor Elmer, Vice Chair 
of ESC OSC asked if Durham County Council would adopt the same 
approach to an ecological emergency as it had in relation to the climate 
emergency and consider as to whether a declaration of an emergency 
needed to be made.  A copy of the question to County Council can be 
found at appendix two. 

 
9 In response to the Vice Chair’s question the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 

Environment and Climate Change advised that he would take a report to 
the October meeting of Cabinet.  

 

10 The Cabinet report considered a report entitled ‘Consideration of an 
Ecological Emergency in County Durham’ which set out the complex 
history the County has had with regard to wildlife and habitat.  Once the 
home of mining and heavy industry, which left a legacy of contamination 
and landscape degradation, the county has seen significant restoration 
over recent decades improving habitat and land, water and air quality.  
This work continues through the activities of the Council and partners. 
 

11 The report to Cabinet on the 13 October 2021 recommended that 
scrutiny include in its work programme, examination of the evidence 
base relating to the decline in natural habitats in County Durham and 
provide an initial report to Cabinet within six months. 
 

12 At its meeting on 24 November 2021, ESC OSC agreed to add to its 
work programme the Ecological Emergency and that the work would be 
considered by the committee through initially two special meetings. The 
Chair agreed to the committee’s request that she would inform the 
Portfolio Holder for Neighbourhoods and Climate Change that greater 
flexibility was required in relation to timescales and that the work may 
take longer than the six months stated by Cabinet.  Members had also 
indicated they would like a representative from the County Durham 

Page 4



Climate Change Partnership to be in attendance at the special meetings 
to ensure there was no duplication of effort in relation to the focused 
piece of work being undertaken by the ESC OSC and the work of the 
Ecological Emergency Workstream of the Partnership.  
 

Conclusion  
 

13 Members of ESCOSC will be aware of the question submitted to County 
Council, the response by the Portfolio Holder for Neighbourhoods and 
Climate Change and what was agreed at the ESC OSC on 24 
November 2021 in relation to the Ecological Emergency focused piece 
of work. 

 
Background papers 

County Council 22 September 2021, agenda item 10 

 Agenda item - Questions from Members - Durham County Council 

Cabinet 13 October 2021, agenda item 9 

 Agenda item - Questions from Members - Durham County Council 

Contact: Ann Whitton 

Diane Close 

03000 268143 

03000268141 

  

Page 5

https://democracy.durham.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=51005
https://democracy.durham.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=51005


Appendix 1:  Implications  

Legal Implications 

Not applicable. 

Finance 

Not applicable. 

Consultation 

Not applicable. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

Not applicable. 

Climate Change 

There is a wider link between habitat restoration and climate change, however 

the recommendations of the report have no direct implication. 

Human Rights 

Not applicable. 

Crime and Disorder 

Not applicable. 

Staffing 

Not applicable. 

Accommodation 

Not applicable. 

Risk 

Not applicable. 

Procurement 

Not applicable. 

 

 

 

Page 6



Appendix 2 

Question asked at County Council on 22 September 2021 

Councillor J Elmer asked the following question 
  
On the 30th June 2021 the House of Commons Environmental Audit 
Committee released their report Biodiversity in the UK: Bloom or Bust? that 
states “Since 1970 there has been a 68% decrease in population sizes of 
mammals, birds, amphibians, reptiles, and fish” and “15% of UK species are 
threatened with extinction.  Of the G7 countries, the UK has the lowest level of 
biodiversity remaining” 
  
Ecosystems might be considered as the planet’s ‘life support 
system’.  Ecosystems provide the oxygen in the very air we breathe, they 
‘host’ the carbon cycle fixing gaseous carbon dioxide, they provide pollination 
for our food crops and maintain a stable climate.  Climate change should 
properly be understood as the consequence of humans exceeding the natural 
capacity of the planet’s ecosystems to take in CO2. 
  
So two crises, inextricably combined, are challenging humanity on a planetary 
scale.  The Climate Crisis is certainly the higher profile of the two, and the 
Council is already addressing this issue through the Climate Emergency 
Response Plan.  The Ecological Crisis is perhaps less well understood, but its 
correction is equally urgent and requires profound change.   
  
County Durham, like the rest of the Country and world has suffered a 
catastrophic crash of species and habitats that collectively form our natural 
systems.  There is no question that we are currently experiencing and 
ecological emergency.  This situation remains, despite the excellent work that 
the Council has delivered in relation to the North Pennines AONB, the 
Heritage Coast, coalfields restoration and many other worthy projects. 
  
Cllr Wilkes, will the Council: 

 -declare an Ecological Emergency; then, 
 -review services to ensure cessation of any activities that negatively 

impact upon ecosystems and to identify opportunities to enhance 
ecosystems; and, 

 -report back to Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny regarding the measures needed to address this emergency 
and their implications to the Council. 

  
In short, will the Council adopt the same approach to tackle the Ecological 
Emergency as it has for the related Climate Emergency? 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

             

 Environment and Sustainable 

Communities Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 

13th December 2021 

Consideration of an Ecological 

Emergency 

 

 

Report of Alan Patrickson, Corporate Director, Neighbourhoods 
and Climate Change 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Countywide. 

Purpose of the Report 

1. To present to Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee a summary of international, national, and local 
information on habitats and species to help inform the 
recommendations it makes to Cabinet regarding the declaration of an 
ecological emergency.   

2. To outline to Members the statutory requirement in the Environment Act 
2021 to prepare Local Nature Recovery Strategies, which will need to 
be developed regardless of declaration, and for which work has already 
commenced. 

Executive Summary 

3. On the 13th October 2021, Cabinet recognised the national and 
international decline in natural habitats and species and requested that 
the information for County Durham be assessed, the evidence of which 
can be utilised to inform a view as to whether an Ecological Emergency 
is declared by the Council. This view would be reported back to Cabinet 
within six months. 

4. In the first of two presentations (the second will be scheduled for early 
in the New Year), the Head of Environment together with the Council’s 
Principal Ecologist will outline the task requested by Cabinet and 
provide an overview of information regarding state of the environment 
in County Durham. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



5. Although national and international data is robust, available local data 
is not sufficient to provide accurate trends across all priority habitats 
and species. The local data provided, especially when looking at 
species data, should generally be regarded as providing ‘general 
guidelines’ on trends and examined in the context of national trends.  

6. Information on the state of habitats in County Durham is provided with 
reference to the condition of Local Wildlife Sites (LWS), Sites of Special 
Scientific Interest (SSSI), functionality of ancient woodlands and Water 
Framework Directive (WFD) Targets.  All indicators show that habitats 
are generally failing to meet condition assessments and conservation 
targets. 

7. The presentation will highlight the links of ecological decline with 
climate change. Fragmented habitats often mean that migration is not 
viable, and the pace of change too great for evolutionary adaption 
processes. On a more positive note there is a role for nature in 
adapting and mitigating climate change, for instance tree planting in the 
right areas to slow water run-off and flooding, as well as sequester 
carbon.  

8. Whilst outside the immediate remit provided by Cabinet, Members will 
be advised of a statutory requirement in the Environment Act 2021 to 
prepare Local Nature Recovery Strategies. Regulations concerning the 
detailed requirements in these strategies have yet to be set out but it 
will need to include a Statement of Biodiversity Priorities and a Local 
Habitat Map together with plans and actions for arresting decline and 
promoting recovery. 

9. Members will be asked to comment on the presentations and given the 
limits on local information, consider if it is sufficient to progress to the 
next stage of considering an Ecological Emergency, the form this 
should take, and the implications for the Council and Partners. 

 

Recommendation(s) 

10. Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is recommended to: 

(a) Consider the information presented, and if it is sufficient to 
progress to the next stage of considering declaration of an 
ecological emergency.  

 

 

Page 10



Background 

11. On the 13th October 2021, Cabinet recognised the national and 
international decline in natural habitats and species and requested that 
the information for County Durham be assessed by Scrutiny. It is 
suggested that this evidence be utilised to inform a view from this 
Committee as to whether an Ecological Emergency is declared by the 
Council. The report requested that findings be fed back to Cabinet 
within six months. 

12. In the first of two presentations (the second will be scheduled for early 
in the New Year), the Head of Environment together with the Council’s 
Principal Ecologist will outline the task requested by Cabinet and 
provide an overview of information regarding state of the environment in 
County Durham. 

13. The presentation will highlight the importance of wildlife, not just for its 
intrinsic value, but also as a barometer for the well being of our 
environment as a whole, our physical and mental well-being, its 
importance to recreation and tourism, and also the benefits of 
maintaining a wide gene pool for future applications and uses. 

14. The main part of the presentation will cover the international, national 
and local evidence for habitats and species. Local information provided 
include the following examples for habitat trends: 

 42% of the 324 Local Wildlife Sites have been resurveyed over the 
last decade. 70% of habitats compartments fail condition 
assessments.  LWS are designated for their local importance. 

 81% of SSSI in County Durham are in ‘unfavourable recovering’ 
condition, only 15% are regarded by Natural England as being in 
‘favourable’ condition.  SSSI are designated for their national 
importance.  

 The Durham Wildlife Audit (1995) states that 25% of ancient 
woodlands have been lost since the 1920’s 

 9% of our ancient woodlands are regarded as being ecologically 
functional, the remainder being too small and fragmented. 

 9% of the River Wear surface waters meet the WFD target of being 
in good condition. 

 15% of the River Tees surface waters meet the WFD target of being 
in good condition.  

Page 11



15. Local species information is more limited, however the evidence 
presented include the Summer Atlas of the Breeding Birds of County 
Durham (2000) provides “guiding statement” trends between 1985 and 
1995 for Durham Biodiversity Action Plan species.  
 

 Coastal birds (17 species): 4 species populations were stable or 
slightly decreasing. 4 species were increasing. No data for 9 
species. 

 

 Farmland birds (18 species): 7 species populations were 
decreasing with a further 3 species stable or slightly decreasing.  
5 species were stable with 2 showing a slight increase. No data 
for a single species. 

 

 Upland Birds (9 species): 2 species populations were decreasing 
with a further 2 stable or slightly decreasing. A single species was 
stable, and none showed an increase. No data for 4 species. 

 

 Woodland and Scrub Birds (9 species): 2 species populations 
were decreasing with a further 2 slightly decreasing. No species 
showed an increase. No data for 5 species. 

 

 Urban and Garden Birds (5 species).  2 species showed a 
probable decrease with a further species decreasing and a single 
species stable or possibly declining. No species showed an 
increase. No data for a single species. 

 
16. For Mammals, amphibians and reptiles of the North East (2012) showed 

clear declines for 5 of the 17 DBAP mammals and herptiles; red 
squirrel, water vole, great crested newt, grass snake and common 
lizard.  Data generally not sufficient to provide robust trends for other 
species. 
 

17. Environment Agency fish counts indicate declining salmon numbers in 
the River Wear and Tees.  The River Tees remains ‘at risk’ of failing to 
meet management objectives for salmon and the River Wear was 
downgraded from ‘not at risk’ to ‘probably not at risk’ in 2014 and is 
predicted to be downgraded again in 2025 to ‘probably at risk’ 
 

18. For insects, bumblebees of North East England (2019) showed that 
since 1926 27% of species are extinct, declined or in decline. Atlas of 
the Butterflies of North East England (2014) indicated that 5 of the 7 
DBAP butterfly species have undergone declines during the 1900s and 
early 2000’s which have not been reversed. 
 

Page 12



19. The presentation will highlight that this information will be utilised in the 
preparation of a Local Nature Recovery Strategy, which is a statutory 
requirement under the Environment Act. Section 106 of this Act 
provides a requirement to produce a statement of biodiversity priorities 
within the strategy area, (including measures to promote enhancement 
and recovery), as well as a local habitat map, not just of existing 
reserves and protected areas, but also those areas where enhancement 
and recovery of biodiversity could make a particular contribution to other 
environmental benefits. Work on this has commenced and will be a key 
next step which will of course have relevance to any action plans linked 
to ecological emergency. 
 

20. Climate change clearly has an impact on wildlife habitat and species as 
well as humans from bleached coral reefs to tundra. The presentation 
will highlight the links of ecological decline with climate change. 
Fragmented habitats often mean that migration is not viable, and the 
pace of change too great for evolutionary adaption processes. On a 
more positive note, there is a role for nature in adapting and mitigating 
climate change, for instance tree planting in the right areas to slow 
water run-off and flooding, as well as sequester carbon. 
 

 

Conclusion 

21. Scrutiny have been asked by Cabinet to review the evidence relating to 
state of the environment in County Durham. A presentation to 
Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee provides an outline of available information, and whilst there 
is a paucity of data, from what is provided it does show a trend of 
decline that mirrors national evidence. 
 

22. Members of the ESCOSC will be asked to comment on the 
presentation, and the evidence presented and consider if it is sufficient 
to progress to the next stage of considering a recommendation to 
Cabinet for an Ecological Emergency declaration. 

  

 
 

Author(s) 

Oliver Sherratt Tel: 03000 268080 

Stuart Priestley Tel: 03000 267135 

  

Page 13



Appendix 1: Implications 

Legal Implications 

There is no specific legal requirement regarding declaration of an ecological 

emergency. Several species listed in this report are statutorily protected, and 

there is also a requirement in the Environment Act 2021 to prepare a Local 

Nature Recovery Strategy (LNRS) which will be referenced in the 

presentation. 

Finance 

There are no specific financial obligations linked to this report, although the 

LNRS may in due course identify costed actions. 

Consultation 

Members may wish to consult more widely relating to potential declaration of 

an ecological emergency. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

Not applicable. 

Human Rights 

Not applicable. 

Climate Change 

The adverse impact of climate change on wildlife is addreesed in this report as 

well as the role for nature in adaption and mitigation. 

Crime and Disorder 

Not applicable. 

Staffing 

Not applicable at this stage, although the LNRS may have impact. 

Risk 

Not applicable. 

Procurement 

An outline of contracts and new procurement will be provided 

Page 14



Consideration to Ecological 
Emergency

Oliver Sherratt, Head of Environment
Stuart Priestley, Principal Ecologist

P
age 15



Outline of 
Presentation

• Introduction and Context: (Oliver)
• The request from Cabinet (13th October 2020)
• Why biodiversity and nature is important.

• The state of our Environment (Stuart)
• Globally / Nationally
• Locally

• Next Steps (Oliver)
• Key Considerations
• The Environment Act 2021 LNRS
• Links to Climate Change  
• Next Steps

P
age 16



Cabinet Meeting 13th

October 2021

a) recognised the national and international decline in 
natural habitats and species; 

b) agreed to make a request to Scrutiny that this work be 
included as part of the scrutiny work programme and that 
a working group is established to examine the evidence 
base relating to the decline in natural habitats in County 
Durham;

c) agreed to make an additional request that an initial 
report to come to Cabinet on the findings of the working 
group referred to in (b) above within 6 months.

P
age 17



Key Challenges for 
ESCOSC

• Review the information and evidence available, 
which will have limitations.

• Determine if a recommendation to Cabinet for 
declaration should be made, and if so the form it 
should take e.g. linked to climate change.

• Consider any other feedback the Committee 
wishes to make to Cabinet.

P
age 18



Why Biodiversity 
is Important

• For wildlife’s sake.

• We are all dependent on healthy 
resilient ecosystems.

• An indicator of pollutants.

• Maintaining a gene pool for future uses 
and applications.

• Recreation and tourism.

• Strong links to climate change. Wildlife 
threatened too, and strong links to 
adaption and mitigation.

• Enriches the quality of our lives.

P
age 19



The state of our 
environment
• Based upon readily available data.
• International and National information will based upon 

United Nations and UK Government reports
• Local data presented will be based upon previous audits, 

species atlases, Durham County Council Green 
Infrastructure Mapping, Ancient Woodland Inventory, Local 
Wildlife Site and data from Natural England and 
Environment Agency.

• Discussions have been held with organisations such as 
ERIC, Butterfly Conservation, Bat Conservation Trust, 
Durham Bat Group, Durham Wildlife Trust, Durham Bird 
Club, Environment Agency.

P
age 20



The global Living Planet Index continues to decline. 

Average 68% decrease in population sizes of mammals, birds, 
amphibians, reptiles and fish between 1970 and 2016. 

Seventy-five per cent of the Earth’s ice-free land surface has 
already been significantly altered.

33% of reef-forming corals and more than a third of all marine 
mammals are threatened

More than 85% of the area of wetlands has been lost.

The Living Planet Report 2020 - WWF
The Living Planet Index (LPI) tracks the abundance of almost 21,000 populations of mammals, 
birds, fish, reptiles and amphibians around the world.

P
age 21



National
15% of species are at risk of extinction

5% Decline in average species distribution

41% Decline in species abundance

The indicator of habitat specialist butterflies down by 68% since 1976

UK Breeding Seabird Indicator shows a 22% decline in average abundance

The Birds of Conservation Concern Red List increased from 36 to 67  
species between 1996 and 2015

The State of Nature 2019

P
age 22



Local - Habitats

Information from:

o SSSI data from Natural England

o Re-Survey of the Local Wildlife Sites

o Information from DDC Green Infrastructure Mapping / 
Ancient Woodland Inventory

o Environment Agency – Water Framework Directive and 
fisheries data

P
age 23



Local – SSSI / LWS

Data from Natural England SSSI condition assessments and DCC re-surveys of Local Wildlife Sites (42% coverage)

P
age 24



Local - Woodlands

“There has been a 25% loss of Durham’s ancient woodlands since the 1920’s”  Durham Wildlife Audit (1995)

P
age 25



Local – WFD
Ecological status categories are Bad, Poor, Moderate, Good and High

Data from the Environment 
Agency with regards to the 
Water Framework Directive 
targets which are to achieve 
‘good’ status of all 
waterbodies.

P
age 26



Local - Species

• Information from:

o A Summer Atlas of the Breeding Birds of County Durham 
(2000)

o Mammals, Amphibians and Reptiles of the North East 
(2012) .

o Bumblebees of North East England (2019)
o Atlas of the Butterflies of North East England (2014)
o Salmon Stocks and Fisheries in England and Wales in 

2020 (and 2016)

P
age 27



Durham Priority Birds

Atlas provides “guiding statement” trends between 1985 and 1995

P
age 28



Durham Priority Birds

Atlas provides “guiding statement” trends between 1985 and 1995

P
age 29



Durham Priority Birds

Atlas provides “guiding statement” trends between 1985 and 1995

P
age 30



Durham Priority Mammals & 
Herptiles 

• 17 Durham Priority mammals and herptiles

• Clear trends for 5 species

• Water vole – Lost from approx. 90% of range (late 1990’s). Further 
30% loss (2006 to 2015)

• Great crested newts – 20% decline between 1984 and 2012

• Grass snake – “decline and possibly heading to extinction”

• Common lizard – “considerable decline in lowland distribution”

• Red Squirrel – 1953 survey “declined of late years”.  Loss from east 
Durham in early 2000’s 

P
age 31



Bumblebees

• 27% of species extinct / declined / in decline

• Great yellow bumblebee  - extinct (1970)

• Red shanked carder bee - extinct (1979)

• Large garden bumblebee - extinct (1926)

• Shrill carder bee - extinct (1926)

• Moss carder bee - significant reduction in distribution

• Barbut’s cuckoo bee - in decline

P
age 32



Priority Butterflies

• 7 Priority Butterflies 

• Northern Brown Argus.  Two district colonies (inland and coastal).  2 inland 
sites lost.  Risks from interbreeding with Brown Argus / coastal erosion / 
small inland sites.

• Dingy Skipper – 2005 survey data, indicated a 30% loss of known sites.

• Small Pearl-bordered Fritillary – formerly across the whole county, significant 
decline in early 1900s.  Increasing due to introductions and active 
management.

P
age 33



Priority Butterflies

• Dark Green Fritillary – Once common, in 1900 Thomas Gatiss describes 
collecting 36 in one day along a six mile walk west of Lanchester.  Declines in 
1960/70’s.  Now recovering and spreading. Stronghold around Waskerley.

• Grayling – noted as extinct by Dunn and Parrack (1986).  Previously present 
along the coast.

• Green Hairstreak – rare species, increase in distribution since 1986 
(recording effort).

• White-letter hairstreak – Increase up to 2006 (recording effort), potential 
decline since 2006.  Regarded as under-recorded.

P
age 34



Salmon

P
age 35



Salmon

Not at Risk >95%
Probably not at risk 50-95% 
Probably at risk 5-50%
At risk <5%

Status of salmon populations assessed against probability of achieving management objectives

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2020 2025

River Wear

River Tees

P
age 36



On a positive note

• Otters returning to our rivers

• Small Pearl Bordered Fritillary sites increasing

• Durham Heritage Coast.  12 miles of coast restored

• NPAONB. Upland hay meadows, restoration of peat, Tees-Swale Project

• DWT.  Discover Brightwater, Naturally Native, Heart of Durham 

• DCC.  Durham Woodland Revival, North East Community Woodland, 
Greenspace Enhancements

P
age 37



Key Considerations

• Strong evidence of international and nationally 
of wildlife decline

• Recognition in Environment Act of need to 
prepare Local Nature Recovery Strategy

• Paucity of local data, but it does show decline.

• Council as a major landowner has some 
influence (e.g. 92 countryside sites and a wide 
estate of public open space).

• Council as a community leader and partner –
any declaration would be more effective if on 
a partnership basis. 

P
age 38



Links to Climate Change
• Habitats and species threatened by 

climate change. Natural 
adaption/migration not fast enough for 
many species.

• Wetlands and coastlands especially 
vulnerable.

• Habitat restoration/recovery eg peat bogs 
good for both wildlife and carbon.

• Habitat creation eg woodlands might be 
good for both climate change, and in the 
right circumstances, wildlife.

• Strong links to Climate Change by natural 
adaptation and sequestration.

Scientific Source:

Natural Environment Research Council

2015 Report Card

P
age 39



What are Local Nature 
Recovery Strategies?

• Strategic plans that will help drive action and investment to help nature 
and wider nature-based environmental benefits.

• Statutory requirement of the Environment Act

• They will consist of:
o A Statement of Biodiversity Priorities: priorities for biodiversity 

outcomes, and the actions that need to be undertaken to achieve 
these outcomes.

o A Local Habitat Map: existing distribution of habitats and areas 
already important for biodiversity, overlaid by locations considered 
suitable for delivering the outcomes and actions.

P
age 40



A Local Nature Recovery 
Strategy for County Durham

• Ecological Emergency Board (County Durham Partnership) established to 
begin the process.

• Ecological Emergency Board comprises of representatives from the private 
and charitable sectors, local authority and non-departmental public bodies; 
all with an interest in nature conservation.

• Until DEFRA produces the final guidance on producing a LNRS the work of 
the Ecological Emergency Board centres around learning from the local 
pilots and preparing the groundwork for a LNRS.  

• Two key pieces of work to prepare for, the Biodiversity Priorities and a Local 
Habitat Map.

• Future presentation to this CommitteeP
age 41



For the next meeting:

1. Recap.
2. Consider if you wish to recommend to 
Cabinet an Ecological Emergency 
Declaration
3. If so, the form it should take eg
standalone or linked to climate change 
emergency declaration.
4. Any further recommendations to 
Cabinet you wish to make.

Brown hare - Brian Rafferty

P
age 42



Questions?

Violet oil beetle – David Fenwick

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Question to Council on 22 September 2021 - Ecological Emergency - Report of Corporate Director of Resources
	6 Consideration of an Ecological Emergency
	Presentation


